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March 29, 2022 
 
 
City of Sultan 
Attn: Andy Galuska, Community Development Director 
319 Main Street 
Sultan, WA 98294-1199 
 
 
Subject:  21-000072 Comment Response Letter #1 

Blue Mountain Meadows Preliminary Subdivision Application 
 

Dear Mr. Galuska, 
 
In response to your Plan Review Comment Letter #1, December 1, 2021, for the Blue Mountain 
Meadows Subdivision application FN: 21-000072, we have revised the design documents and SEPA 
Checklist. 
 
We have included responses to the City of Sultan comments copied into this document for reference, 
with our responses indicated in bold text.  Thank you for your continued help on this project. We look 
forward to finalizing the preliminary plat documents. If you have any questions during your review of the 
documents, please call. 
 

Planning Comments: 
 

1. On Page 6 of the plan set, add lot 14 to the lot areas table. 
Response:  Lot 14 has been added to the lot areas table.  
 

2. SMC 16.52.060 states that in addition to the recreation facilities requirement, at 
least five percent of the total land area of a residential subdivision of more than 10 
lots shall be dedicated as an open space tract (or parcels of land). Please 
indicate on the plans where this tract will be and its area. If Tract 999 is 
supposed to fulfill this requirement, note that the detention facility cannot be 
fenced. 
Response:  The open space tracts have been added to a separate open space 
calculation summary shown on both sheet 6 – Overall Plat Map, and Sheet 16 – 
Preliminary Landscape & Parking Plan. 
 

3. Per SMC 16.54.020, parking spaces need to be between 8.5’ and 10’ wide. 
Please revise street guest parking stalls and driveway widths on landscape plans to 
have a width of at least 8.5’ per parking spot or 17’ for a two-car side-by-side 
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driveway. 
Response:  On street guest parking has been revised from 8.0’ to 8.5’, and side by side 
driveway parking stalls have been revised to 17’ wide.  
 

4. Address the redlined comments on the SEPA checklist provided with the 
application. 
Response: All redlined comments on the SEPA checklist have been addressed. 
 

5. Snohomish County PDS Map Portal identifies a Snohomish County inventoried 
Wetland that crosses the project parcel in two locations, the wetland biologist 
report makes no mention to this. From previous site visits we believe it is possible 
there may be areas in the northwest corner of the property which may meet 
wetland definition criteria. Please have your wetland consultant address this area. 
Response: Verification that no wetland is present on-site is addressed in an updated 
report from Soundview Consultants.  Page 4 of the report addresses the wetland - 
excerpt below. 
 

“No potentially-regulated wetlands and/or fish and wildlife habitat was identified on the 
subject property; however, two offsite wetlands were identified, one to the north and one to 
the south of the site. None of the data plots met for all three of the criteria (i.e., vegetation, 
soils, and hydrology) required for a positive wetland determination. All data plots were dug to 
a depth of at least 14 inches and left open for a minimum of 30 minutes to allow adequate 
time for the ground water table to appear; however, no evidence of wetland hydrology 
(surface water, groundwater table, or saturation) was observed for DP-1, DP-2, DP-3, DP-4, 
and DP-6. Soils onsite were generally disturbed with fill material, compacted soils, and/or 
removed overburden. Further, no indicators of naturally occurring hydric soils were observed 
as soils throughout the site generally consisted of matrices with chromas of 3, which is 
generally too bright to meet any loamy/clayey hydric soil criteria regardless of redoximorphic 
features.” 

 
Data point 3 from NW corner of site – Page 23 and 24 
  

Public Works Comments 
 
General 

 
1. Per Sultan Municipal Code 17.14.010 D the project shall be designed to Department of 

Ecology 2019 SWMMWW. 
Response: The project has been revised to the Department of Ecology 2019 SWMMWW.  
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2. References to Snohomish County code throughout drainage report, parcel is located 
within the City of Sultan therefore City code shall apply. 
Response: The Storm Drainage Report has been revised to reference the adopted 
Department of Ecology 2019 SWMMWW. 
 

3. The Geotechnical Report noted groundwater seepage from 1.5' to 9' in depth on the 
site. The wetpond has a total depth of approximately 10’ below existing grade. Pond live 
storage must be above the seasonal high groundwater level, please revise, see section 
5.8 of 2019 SWMMWW. 
Response: The detention pond will no longer have a water quality wetpool, therefor 
Section 5.8 of 2019 SWMMWW does not apply. The revised detention pond will be 0.5’ 
below existing grade of the original pond. The detention pond will also be lined to prevent 
groundwater seepage. 

 

Civil Plans 
 

1. Per City of Sultan Preliminary Plat Checklist please provide the following: 
a. Title block that includes the following: 

i. File number (Contact Cyd Donk to get the file number) 
ii. Site address (or block number) 

Response: The file number has been added to the bottom right-hand corner of very sheet.  
The site address, by block and intersection has been added to the site information notes 
on the cover sheet. 

 
b. It appears that there will be right-of-way as part of this project, please provide 

proposed lot’s legal descriptions and any area that will be dedicated. 
Response: The legal description and exhibit map of the dedication area has been 
provided with this resubmittal. 

 
c. Open space calculations. 

Response: The open space tracts have been added to a separate open space calculation 
summary shown on both sheet 6 – Overall Plat Map, and Sheet 16 – Preliminary 
Landscape & Parking Plan. 

 
d. Road classifications of adjacent streets, and frontage improvements along 

Sultan Basin Rd according to classification. 
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Response: Road Classifications are noted on the cover sheet.  Constructing the sidewalk 
on Sultan Basin Rd. according to the street classification would require additional 
property from the parcel to the north and to the south to transition the sidewalk back to 
the right of way.   PACE recommends constructing the sidewalk at the existing curb and 
gutter, then extending the proposed sidewalk to meet the existing sidewalk to the north.  
The existing bollards and pedestrian “do not cross” sign would be relocated.  
Additionally, 10’ of property would be dedicated to the City for future build-out of Sultan 
Basin Rd. as a minor arterial.  According to the EDDS road standards a 3-lane minor 
arterial requires 80’ of ROW.   Please let us know if this is acceptable and we will provide 
the legal for this dedication. 

 
e. Comprehensive plan designation. 

Response:  The comprehensive plan designation has been added under zoning on the 
coversheet.   

 
2. Hammerhead turnaround on a fire lane longer than 150ft is not allowed unless 

dwellings have a sprinkler system per 3-10A.1. 
Response:  Acknowledged.  Lots 14-18, accessed from the hammerhead turnaround will 
require sprinkler systems. 
 

3. On sheet 10 per Sultan water and sewer standards you must serve to the extreme of 
the property to ensure adjacent properties can be served. You must extend the 
water and sewer utilities to the end of the road. See the image below: 

 

 

UB 
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Response: The proposed water and sewer main extensions have been extended to the end of 
the road.  

 
4. On sheet 11 the water main dead ends at a hydrant in front of Tract 997. The water 

main will need to be extended through tract 997 and tract 999 and connected to the 
water main in sultan basin Road to provide the require loop for water quality and 
redundancy of service during an outage. 

Response: The water main extension has been revised to connect to the existing water main 
located on the property to the south to provide the required water loop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 
PACE Engineers, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
Brian Way, PLA 
Project Manager 
 
 
 
 
cc:  Bryce Levin, Housing Hope 
 
Attachments:  Public Road ROW dedication legal and exhibit map 
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